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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now in session. Today is April 22, 2010, the time is 9:02. Good morning,
Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for being here. At this time, the Chair would like to
recognize the Members that are present this morning. We do have
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair, and happy birthday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. The Chair would like to introduce the Staff
that are here again supporting us. We do have Legislative Analysts Gayle Revels
as well as Scott Kaneshina, and our Committee Secretary is Yvette Bouthillier
This morning we do have members of the Administration. Again, we do have the
Budget Director, Mr. Pablo and from the Planning Department we have the
Director, Mr. Hunt and the Deputy Director, Ms. Aoki, and they're here because
of a request that was made yesterday.
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Members, we do have some people signed up for public testimony this morning.
And for those of you that are providing public testimony this morning, you have
three minutes to provide your testimony. After two minutes has gone by, Staff
will let you know that you have one more minute to conclude. But before we take
in public testimony, if every one of us can turn off our cell phones or put it on the
silent mode. Thank you. The first testifier this morning is Tom,
Thomas Fairbanks, followed by Janice Fairbanks.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. FAIRBANKS (from the audience): Handout. . . .I have one for the Budget
Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Same thing?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. FAIRBANKS: The Chair, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hey, happy birthday, Tom.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, it's your birthday also?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Happy. . .happy birthday.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Happy birthday. Wow!
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Wow! . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Ehia makahiki.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And today is Earth Day, too.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wow.
MR. FAIRBANKS: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. FAIRBANKS: . . .(Inaudible). . .have my three minutes, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, no, no. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. FAIRBANKS: Aloha, everyone. I'm back today with my B&B hat on. Thank you
for giving me this time. I'm here to protest the Commercial Residential rate. In
1996, my wife and I chose to enter the bed and breakfast business so my wife
could stay home with the grandchildren. Nowadays families need to really take
care of the kids. We found our home, the Historic Lufkin House, we scraped a
deal together and purchased it in 1996 with the intent to...rehabilitate this historic
home to adapt the new use as a bed and breakfast inn. It's also our home, we live
there. We made a business plan, and our plan included what our expenses would
be and what our income should be so we could pay the mortgage and live
comfortably and certainly, eventually retire and work there full time, too. From
the time we purchased the property in 1996, we did not take the Homeowner's
Exemption and we paid the Improved property rate. Our property taxes in 1998
when we got our permit, our B&B permit was $980 a year. The B&B ordinance
stated we would pay the Improved Residential rate. At the proposed Residential,
Commercial Residential rate, we will pay $9,667 this coming fiscal year in
property tax. Our appraisal went down this year by 43,000, yet my home's
property tax will increase by almost 2,000, $1,900. This is a 25 percent increase
over last year, a new proposed rate. Since 1998 to 2010, we've had an increase of
886 percent in our property taxes as a B&B, and I don't think this is fair at all.
We're the only ones paying those kinds of increases. If you review Appendix 1-A
[sic], you can see that my immediate neighbors reflect an array of different
assessments and rates to compare what we pay versus Commercial-MR. KANESHINA: Two minutes.
MR. FAIRBANKS: --versus Residential and versus Hotel. And these are very. . .the, the
rates are very close to what Mr. Croly presented yesterday. When evaluating the
impact of--oh, wait. . .let's see, where am I? Okay. When evaluating the impact
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of appraisals and tax rates relative to my neighbors, my home has the highest
percentage increase in the period of 2001 to 2009, 213 percent. That's, I think, on
line 3, the yellow line. . .you look at yellow line--no, on the bottom of the page,
the bottom of the page, yellow line, Appendix A-1. My property tax per
guestroom could be higher than the Maui Beach by $200 per room than what they
pay per room if this arbitrary Commercial Residential rate goes through.
Historically I've always paid more taxes per guestroom than the Maui Beach and
the Maui Palms. These numbers are consistent with Tom Croly's numbers
presented to you yesterday-MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. FAIRBANKS: This is the three minutes? Oh. This form is updated with 2009
information. B&Bs are paying more than their fair share at the 4.80 rate already
and you cannot, you should not increase our rates at all. Our, our revenues are
down 50 percent from 2007 to 2009 in our operation, and it's down another
10 percent this first quarter already. We can't afford this. It's our home, we live
there. You guys promised us when you made this Commercial Residential rate
that you were going to find some kind of comfortable blend between Commercial
and Residential, and then it comes up with this rate that's more than Commercial
and it's, it's just unbelievable. I don't know where you guys are coming from.
The County government is milking the business sector dry. This is my home-MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
MR. FAIRBANKS: --and we live here. You-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tom, can you conclude, please?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. FAIRBANKS: The County needs to clean its house first. Before you clean B&B
and businesses. . .own, owners out of theirs, please help me keep my home, don't
raise my taxes. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Tom. Just
for clarification in your testimony, when you say, you guys, you mean the
Administration, right?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Because, yeah, this is not being issued by the
Council.
MR. FAIRBANKS: I'm sorry. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. So this will basically, yeah, at this rate
put you guys out of business basically?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Well, yeah, their rates before have been putting us out of business. I
mean look at that kind of increase when you start--and this is what's happening to
everyone and this is what gets me mad. You guys say that, you know, the, the
hotels and everybody is ripping you guys off, well, they all started out 30 years
ago. My owner, same owner--our hotel--and he probably has similar experience
where his rates have gone up 8, 900 percent. He has not taken, he's taken no
money out and the County has taken more money from our hotel than we have,
our owner has received in profits. And I don't have that number with you, but if
you want to, I can get it for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. FAIRBANKS: And you guys need to get with it. And I, you know what, I see you
guys as the board of directors. You are doing, you're taking the Mayor's monkey
on your back. You send that budget back to her and you tell her, you make that
budget work and that's what we're going to accept, not increase, because that's
her job, not yours. And if, and when we're in business, if we send a budget like
that to our owner, you know what our owner going to say, okay, you're not going
to make the revenues, don't lose no profit at the bottom line. That's the same,
you guys gotta have zero at the bottom. Just tell 'em, send it back. It's not fair to
you guys.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Tom.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Fast question. You know, in your testimony that
you presented us this morning you talked about, you know, being taxed Improved
Residential which was the. . .previous ordinance and this ordinance here. So
when you look at the Improved Residential rate that is imposed or being proposed
by the Administration, can you give me some comments in regards to that
particular increase?
MR. FAIRBANKS: I think that that's really unfair, too. It's a dollar increase, it's the
largest increase of anyone. It looks like a total slap just like it is to us, the B&B
owners. It's a total slap on the visitors or people that own only vacation homes
here, and they're going to just milk them dry. But what about the local people
that have rentals that actually are honest and, and don't put the exemption on it?
They're going to get hit with thousands of dollars because I'm still going to
pay--well, I don't know what it's going to be like--$1,500 more than instead of
$1,900? So that rate I don't think is fair either. If you want people to pay the
proper rates, you don't want them to file a Homeowner's Exemption and lie about
it. You, you gotta be fair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh. Can you comment on revenue, the way it was based
is, was revenue. . .equal?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Well, my comment was to you guys on that--and I'm sorry I was so
emotional, but just. . .I, I just see that you guys are being. . .the, the monkey gets
put on your back and it shouldn't be put on your back. You're the. . .I see you
guys, you're elected as the board of directors. You're supposed to keep them in
check. And when the, the Administration doesn't do their job or they can't
maintain, balance their books, then you gotta send it back to 'em and say fix it. I
have a suggestion how you can fix it. You go back to what--I think the, I think
your revenue's expected at the old rates if we just don't raise any rates. I'm not
sure if it's the same as 2007 Budget. Tell 'em, okay, just use 2007 Budget. Every
department, every. . .every nonprofit, everybody gets whatever's in the 2007
Budget. And if you weren't on the Budget in 2007, then you're gone. And I
know there was 250 jobs added since 2007 to the County. The County has not
acted responsibly at all and they need to get responsible and do their job.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and thank you very much, Tom, for being here this
morning.
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MR. FAIRBANKS: I hope I didn't embarrass anybody 'cause I don't, wouldn't want to
embarrass anybody. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I don't think anybody wants to be embarrassed. But
I think a frank and honest discussion is due. This is a very, very important
subject. You know, we worked really, really hard to come up with a B&B
ordinance, and what I'm hearing from the B&B operators who have gone through
that process is many of them are going to be gone if we implement this rate the
way it's proposed. So it's important we talk about it. We can't do any more harm
to businesses. It's just not good business for us. We, we hurt business, we don't
have jobs, we don't have taxes. I mean it just doesn't make any sense. I want
your opinion. We had a number of people who operate B&Bs as well as the, the
representative from MVRA come and suggest a rate to us, and the rate they
suggested was $3.12 per 1,000, also acknowledging that they lose their
Homeowner's Exemption which, of course, already cost them a lot of money.
Your thoughts?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Well, I think that would be ideal, especially in this time right now,
`cause if you. . .once you raise rates, then they don't go down. I don't think you
guys ever lowered any rates yet. So, I think that would be very fair especially
since our rates are down 50 percent, you know, and we're such a small segment of
it, and it seems kind of like really not very good when you guys just passed the
law and you, and we got 50, I think it's 50 permits now, you know. All these
people in the last year and a half got permits and now they're going to. . .they're,
they're. . .I mean for, it's just unbelievable. Some of those properties if they just
go to regular, the old rates, I think they're going to pay like 20,000 more, some of
the real expensive homes, 'cause I remember I did the same analysis that
Tom Croly did. So it would be fair, I think, because we. . .people want to charge
the B&B at the Commercial rate, but you cannot do business in your property.
The only thing you can do is B&B and you, you don't have zoning with that. So,
you know, I have a white elephant. I can't sell it, I can't do anything with it. I'm
stuck and I have a huge mortgage every month. So that would be a huge help for
me and I'm sure it'll be for the other B&Bs. And what I didn't get a chance to tell
in my testimony was that there are a number of B&Bs right now, the old-timers,
the ones that came in with, the same time as us, got their permits, they are up for
sale now, they can't make their mortgage payments. So, you know, this is what's
happening and you just have to multiply this, maybe say Kaanapali Beach Hotel,
you multiply it by ten, and that's what's happening with the hotels. You know, I
mean it's kind of common sense.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I appreciate that.
MR. FAIRBANKS: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. One, one more last comment-MR. FAIRBANKS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --from, from me. If we were to keep the rates as
is. . .(chuckle). . .
MR. FAIRBANKS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .any comments?
MR. FAIRBANKS: I think that's what you should do. And like I said, I think you
should kick the budget back to the Mayor and tell her-CHAIR PONTANILLA: (Inaudible due to interruption)-MR. FAIRBANKS: --to balance it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --on, on the Improved Residential?
MR. FAIRBANKS: I think you should keep, I don't think you should raise any rates
`cause everybody's hurting--you know, there's hotels that are in foreclosure,
they're not paying their mortgages. You know, luckily our hotel, our owners
owned it for 30 years and he has a really tiny mortgage, so we don't have a
huge--for the Kaanapali Beach Hotel. . .(inaudible). . .that right now--we don't
have a huge, big debt payment to pay. That's why we're okay, you know, we're
kind of okay. We're not doing really good, but we're-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. FAIRBANKS: --we're still using our, our reserves up, which is not good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Tom. Thank you for your comments and I, I do
understand. . in regards to what was told yesterday of us-MR. FAIRBANKS: Yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in regards to the rates itself and, and because you folks have
discounted your, your rates for, I don't know, how many years now, the revenues
are just not coming in.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And to continue paying even at the regular rates is, is a
problem because, you know, we all know that if you don't have the revenue, how
the hell you going pay your taxes. So.. .
MR. FAIRBANKS: That's right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .thank you and happy birthday, by the way.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Oh, thank you. Thank you. But I just-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
MR. FAIRBANKS: Yeah. And nobody was--okay, go ahead. I'm sorry.
. . .(chuckle). . . You can ask me questions. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Ehia makahiki?
MR. FAIRBANKS: . . .(spoke in Hawaiian).. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (chuckle). . . Okay. I think what you
just brought to light, Tom, was something very interesting is that there is a
distinction here between those who are involved in this particular kind of industry
and longevity. When you talk about the fact that you are here, have been for the
long term, and then are being penalized perhaps as, as we look at changes is no
different than you're describing, in your case, your particular property that's been
there for 30 years, and then have a real different bottom line because of the fact
that you've been here so long. So I'm just wondering if, you know, if that has
anything to do with the fact that we're trying to apply this, this rate across the
board and trying to be fair. But depending on the particular situation of longevity
versus investment turnover, it changes that, that quality and the. . .I guess the
concern would be different if I just bought a property today and then tomorrow
the rates change and then I, I have a difficult time. But I've been in the property
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for 30 years and tomorrow has an impact, but it won't has, have the same impact
as the one who's just made a, a recent investment perhaps. But.. .
MR. FAIRBANKS: No, that would, that's a very bad, not good-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. FAIRBANKS: --thought because the one that made the recent investment made the
million dollar, or 2 million or, or-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right.
MR. FAIRBANKS: --100 million, or 300 million. I mean when those guys. . .when,
when the timeshares were going, you know, crazy, we had. . .I mean we were
having offers at our hotel. Lucky our owner didn't want to sell for just unheard
of amounts, and they were just going to take the whole thing down and rebuild
from scratch. So no, those people that are coming in now, they're paying the top
dollar, and so they, they have huge mortgages and huge things to pay every
month. They're worse off. It's not, it's not fair to anyone. And those of us that
are older properties, while we don't get the rates that they do, so we have a much
harder time covering our expenses because we have much lower rates. So
it's. . .there's not a really way that you could subjectively apply different rates to
different people. And I think that's the problem, you know, and-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, yesterday the-MR. FAIRBANKS: --I think what you gotta do is just send the budget back. It's not
acceptable.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We don't have an option to send
it back.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Why?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
MR. FAIRBANKS: You're the board of directors.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. We're going to, we're going to
create the budget, you know. It'll be the Mayor's opportunity to either approve
or, or disapprove it, you know. So we need to, to decide now how to, to find a
remedy that we want to support and we want to create.
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MR. FAIRBANKS: Well, I suggest that you go back to a budget that the County has
done before that is a proven budget that you know you can accomplish. Because I
know Mr. Victorino said before, that, that we have to provide County services.
While the County has grown like four times or whatever in the last 20 years or
maybe even more than that, in the last, in the last two years you've grown 250
employees or whatever it is. So don't tell me all those people are in Police and
Water and, and Fire and this, because those people aren't. Those people--we've
been providing those services forever. So where is the money going? And
there's the fat and that's what gotta be cut out. I don't know what else to say.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And then, Tom, I think what I
would like to do is take a look at the information you've provided, and yesterday
the Finance Director talked about. . .justifying the rates and talked about their
concept of, you know, revenue neutral, you know, as, as the Chair was describing.
But I wanted to try and see now how that'll, how is, how that's applicable to your
particular situation and, and does it really pan out to become a fair way of trying
to look at this. So, but I don't have. . .I have a little bit more information that I
would like from you so that I can make that assessment. So.. .
MR. FAIRBANKS: I have a lot of backup I gave to Joe, there's all the backup for all
that stuff.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. FAIRBANKS: I just didn't give it to everybody because it's a lot of paper.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Hauoli la hanau.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the birthday
guy? . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. FAIRBANKS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tom.
MR. FAIRBANKS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Janice Fairbanks, followed by Dennis O'Donnell.
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MR. FAIRBANKS (from the audience): . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. FAIRBANKS: Because he can answer all the questions.
MR. FAIRBANKS (from the audience): . . . (inaudible).. .
MS. FAIRBANKS: Aloha and happy birthday. I'm Janice Fairbanks and the, I'm the
owner of the Old Wailuku Inn at Ulupono, just down the street. And we've been
in business--oh, what is it?-MR. FAIRBANKS (from the audience): Twelve years.
MS. FAIRBANKS: --I think it's 12 years now. And with this increase you're talking
about sustainability. I don't know how you're looking at sustainability for us
because we have no room for growth. Our rates are lower and we, there's no
place else to suck out from. That's all. I just wanted to put another face to this
and to let you know that it's hard, everybody's losing their jobs, hotel people, I
had to layoff two people. It's been. . .and I'm starting to, I'm, I'm not even taking
a salary anymore. I have my daughter working for me, we're down to barebones.
And we take money out from our savings to pay our mortgage. So it's gotten
very much harder for I think not just me, but every other B&B owner. That's
pretty much what I had to say. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Thanks again. Dennis O'Donnell, followed by Randy Ragon.
MR. O'DONNELL: Good morning, everybody. Aloha. My name's Dennis O'Donnell.
I'm the owner of the Haiku Lani Cottage in Haiku, Maui County Permit
BBPH2009/0008. I appreciate the time to speak today. I have to admit I'm not
much of a public speaker. So if I sound nervous, it's because I am. I know you
guys have a job to do, a lot of holes to fill in the budget. But I have to go on the
record to say that I'm opposed to the new tax category of Commercial
Residential, and I'm definitely opposed to the proposed massive increase in the
taxes to the B&B property holders. You know, I've always felt that I've played
by the rules. We've had our GET tax license for many years. My wife's a
bookkeeper, so she made sure we paid every penny of the TAT for all these years.
We first applied for a TVR license back with the Apana Administration. The
County accepted our application and the fees, and then we were told sit tight, as
long as there's no complaints you guys are fine. Then when the Arakawa
Administration came in, we asked for approval of the. . .application. We were
told we had to resubmit, so we resubmitted the application. Again the County
accepted the application and the fees, and we were told sit tight, as long as there's
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no complaints you guys are fine. Then the Tavares Administration came in, and
we all know what happened at that stage. The rug was pulled out from the entire
industry. We were. . .have complied. We told. . .we stopped doing rentals. It
was a very, very challenging time for us. We were under the belief that the
County would do a fair and just way of dealing with these short-term rentals. So
in January 2009 when the. . .new application was put forth, we were one of the
first ones in line to submit it. Six to eight months later we got the permit. We
thought, okay, we're finally back on track. That's when we heard about the
Homeowner's Exemption being pulled, which again it just seems totally unfair.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. O'DONNELL: We, we live there. We're not absentee owners, we've lived in the
same house for more than 20 years, my daughter was born and raised there.
That's our only property. Why the Homeowner's Exemption got pulled, I don't
know. But we said, hey, that's life, we'll deal with it. But then when we heard
about the new category, the Commercial Residential, that's, that's just when it
was just unacceptable. The rates we heard were astronomical, and it's not just on
the cottage, the tiny, little cottage, it's on the whole property. And it's like, well,
where's the justification for that? It's. . .the only difference between my place
and the neighbor up the street is my tenants are staying in there for less than 180
days, hers is staying more than 180, and for that we're being penalized. That's
the only way I can see it. Where is the justification? What's the County doing?
Are they increasing services or fees or anything that we're getting out of it? It
just seems improper at that time. You know, again, I know you guys have
a. . .holes to fill, but I think this is going to backfire on you. I think the people
that are sitting on the fence thinking should I get the-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. O'DONNELL: --permit, should I not, are going to go underground. They're,
they're going to non-comply, your non-compliance is going to go through the
roof, you're not going to get the revenues you want. And the people like us who
are above the board, playing by the rules are going to do the math, crunch the
numbers and find, hey, it's not economically feasible to do short term anymore.
We're going to put the permit back in, we're going to get the Homeowner's
Exemption back again, we're going to put the cottage up for long term which is a
extremely saturated market right now, tons are on the market, and it's going to be
lose, lose, lose for everybody. So, I know you got a job to do, but penalizing the
guys that are playing by the rules, the moms-and-pops, just doesn't seem to be the
fair way about doing it. So thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you again.
MR. O'DONNELL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The last person to sign up for public testimony this morning is
Randy Ragon.
MR. RAGON: Hi, my name is Randy Ragon. I'm the President of the Olowalu Mauka
Homeowner's Association. I just want to make sure that I'm, I'm at the right time
with this because what I'm going to be testifying about is, is fines for when. . .for
violations of SMA permits. I, I've heard. . .I was told that, that you guys are
discussing that, that issue right now. Is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we're discussing our Fiscal Year 2011 Proposed Budget as
proposed by the Mayor of this County.
MR. RAGON: Okay. In light of that, then maybe, since I'm here anyway, maybe I can
point you guys to the direction where you can pickup some, some extra
income. . .if you, if you would bear with me on that one. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. RAGON: Okay. The history in Olowalu Mauka. The last time that I met with, with
this County Council, I was encouraging that there would be enforcement against
the violations going back to the year 2000 on the SMA permit in Olowalu Mauka
Subdivision. Since that time, the County of Maui has decided to. . .they, they've
agreed with our position and they've decided to enforce the violations. I gave you
in a packet, I've also e-mailed you a recent letter from Department of
Transportation where they say that the SMA was granted, but that. . .no lots were
to be occupied until the improvements were done on the highway and the
conditions were met. That goes back to the year 2000. So my understanding is
that the fines against the developer can be up to $1,000 a day. So, you know, I
really want you to consider that because we're, we've been stuck since 2000--I
personally worked on this for over two years. There's been an enormous price
that's been paid by our homeowners as well as just, you know, individual families
that you won't even hear about, the horror stories, families breaking up. I
personally have lost a four-year old daughter that's going back to the mainland
that has a lot to do with this, with the problems that happened a couple of weeks
ago. My wife initially is a lawyer. She started this action against the developer,
pulled out all the information, but then actually got fed up with the developer and,
and it got to the point where it was just not a, a. . .a friendly environment for my
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daughter to be in, in our household 'cause she just kept going, I want to go back
to the mainland, I want to go back; I'm sick and tired of this developer, I'm sick
and tired of Olowalu, et cetera. Many owners are in that position.
MS. REVELS: Two minutes.
MR. RAGON: So, you know, at, at what point--you know, the damage has already been
done. The developer's gone in, they've developed, and there's no incentive for
them to correct the problem because why spend the money if they don't have to,
just keep playing the game. And currently, they're coming before the County
Council to get Olowalu Town approved. If they get that approved, then they'll
just pass that cost, that cost on into their new development or, or flip it to another
developer and it gets all passed on. In the meantime, families have been
destroyed, our health and safety. Let's just take it back to my four-year old
daughter. We've driven her through flames to get out of the subdivision because,
because there is no fire road. Multiple times we, we've come to head-on
collisions, near head-on collisions. My wife furious on the phone calling me and I
almost got, you know, a head-on again. We're going to have more fires up there
and in the meantime, every time we. . .the developer switches over and goes
(inaudible due to interruption)-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, point of order.
MR. RAGON: --we're gonna, we're gonna switch the highway. Now instead of doing
what we were supposed to do, we're gonna-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sir.
MR. RAGON: --build one, a relocation of a driveway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Ragon, I'm going to stop you here.
MR. RAGON: Yeah. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, if I may, I'd like to state my point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Again, I think this is a. . .you know, an important issue
for those residents, but I don't think this is the appropriate Committee. We can
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talk about the proposed rate increase or decrease if, if a testifier wants to discuss
the rate as it relates to SMA permits and so forth. But I think if we're talking
about a specific project, I, I don't know. . .I think it has to tie-in with an increase
on the rate. But anyway, I just wanted to state that point so we don't violate any
Sunshine Laws, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and the Chair allowed the testifier to go
ahead and testify. Mr. Ragon, Mr. Molina is correct. It, it's not agendized other
than the 2011 Budget, but this Chair allowed you to say your piece for three
minutes. So, I would appreciate that you conclude with a sentence, simple
sentence.
MR. RAGON: Fair enough.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, thank you. Mr. Ragon, I think,
you know, your, your presentation here probably in the light of fees is an
appropriate one because we are here now talking about fees that we are
considering to. . .(end of tape lA — 9:32 a.m.). . .the budget document that refers
to SMA processes. So, I think in that vein I, I think. . .I would be very happy to
hear the, what the Department has to, to say concerning those fees. So, I think I
just want to add aside from the other instances of your testimony, the one that's
probably more appropriate for us today is the section on fees. And I, I would
gladly take up that discussion with the Department.
MR. RAGON: Great.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. RAGON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for being here. Is there anyone out in
the public that hasn't signed up for public testimony, that want to provide public
testimony at this time, please come forward. Seeing one, without any objection,
Members, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused: JJ, DAM, BKM, MPV).
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 10-27, CC 10-61, CC 10-68)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, this morning we do have the
Planning Department joining us, and this is at the request of
Member Kaho' ohalahala. So at this time, I'd like to call on
Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. And thank
you, Planning Department, for being here. Members, I want to refer to
communications that we just received from the Budget Director dated April 19 th ,
just so that we can be on, on the same page. And this is in reference to questions
that were raised by this Committee on March 24 th to the Planning Department.
And attached to that is also a response from the Planning Department, providing
responses to questions as well as providing for this Committee actually are really
good statistics. Yeah. So, Chair, maybe a brief recess because I would like to
pursue this making sure that all the Members have the right information and
document before them. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The Chair is going to call for a short recess to ensure
that all of the Members have that particular documentation, which I'm trying to
fmd myself.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Did you give it this morning?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, no. This was.. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members, short recess. Please remain in place.
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:34 a.m.
9:40 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I thought it
would be important for us to refer back to this communication provided to us by
the Planning Department via the Budget Director. And I think I'm bringing this
concern up because I, I think one of the things we have at least been able to
discuss yesterday with the Finance Director was ways in which we might look at
fees as, as part of an opportunity to apply them appropriately where there, they
may, may be considered. So in looking at the response that came back to us from
the Planning Department, I wanted to note that in the overall comments on the
Director's letter dated April 19 th , the Director is outlining all of the, the four
divisions of the Department and then now leaving comments about what's the
responsibilities of those departments are. And in the first page in the overall
comments, he says that the volume of applications during the early part of this
decade was overwhelming, and I want to make sure that you look at the
attachment that has some very good information that the, the Department
provided for us, giving us all of the statistics that relate to the Planning Divisions
and all of the applications that have been provided to them over the last couple
years, from 2008 to, to present. And this is applicable in terms of looking at the
responses and why I would raise this today.
So the Department says it's been overwhelming. The huge number of
applications during that time should not be viewed, though, as standard, and that
the recent deductions in applications has brought the number down to a
reasonable level. Secondly, the Department says having a more reasonable level
of applications has allowed staff to analyze how applications are processed, such
as seeking streamlining, streamlining efforts, clarification of processes, and then
adoption of new legislation, et cetera. The third is that while the Department has
made strong efforts to reduce permit processing times, the cutting of staff will
result in an increase in the amount of time required to process applications, and
reduce the thoroughness of review or follow-up for permits. I think that that's
very important to note, that because of the volume and the reduced amount of
staff, it might, it might result in the reduced of thoroughness in review and in
following up on permits. And in following the, the Current Planning Division
who handles the larger development projects require public hearings, Council
action. And you'll see that the application numbers are down in FY '10, the
numbers are expected to rise again in FY '11 due to an improving economy, and
the adoption of the Maui Island Plan. . .and will provide clear direction to where
growth is intended. Three says some application numbers that involve complex
projects are up, such as State District Boundary Amendments and Project
Districts, and that's making reference to the, the first page in their Current
Planning Division list of applications. And then that the Division has had a
backlog of over 500 applications as of March 2010 that still consumes staff time.
Okay.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 22, 2010

So what I wanted to do was try to establish by looking at our, our budget
document in terms of rates and fees, and then look at what. . .I'm, I'm trying to
extract from the information that the Planning Department is providing to us.
So, I have a couple questions that I, I want to ask the Department to help us
through this, and I would like to begin by asking the Department. While you've
provided this information here that's really good to us because you've given us an
exact number of the types of applications and the numbers of them over the past
three fiscal years and then what you anticipate, I think it would good for us to
have two, three more columns to add to this, and I'm not sure how soon you
would be able to do that. But my request of the Department was if you could
attach another column that has a fee amount, what is the fee to every one of these
applications so that we understand that. And then two, if you could give us an
estimate of how much time is required by your staff to process any one of these
applications that you have listed here. And then three, if you could do a column
that is just a check of that, if these applications require or is a trigger that would
move the application to a board or a commission. So if you added those three
columns, it would make a little bit more sense of what is really happening here,
how much time is required, and what is the cost to do these things. Okay. So is
that something you can provide for us like today?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. HUNT: If you give us five minutes. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, I'll give you five minutes. But,
but I think to make sense of your information, that would be helpful because
we're now talking about dollars and cents. It would be helpful for us to know
what it really costs you to do any one of these application processes and how
much time and how much staffing--because in your own comments when you say
that reducing your staff is going to diminish the quality of your application
process, then I would like to know then what that is in terms of cost and time,
staff time.
MR. HUNT: Yes, we, we can provide that information. Some of it will be estimates, of
course, and some of it will be somewhat complex 'cause different applications
sometimes are joined together, but we, we can provide a response as you
requested.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I, I appreciate that. Next, I, I
want to make at least a comment on that. And I said, you know, in, in terms of
what I see is occurring in Planning, I see that we have really wide gaps of
disproportion between the fees and the proposed actions and, and/or the impacts
that are involved, and I think the question of how we place value on the
developments and how that relates not only to fees but also in the process. And I
think this morning by the testifier, we're seeing that there are other impacts where
the homeowners themselves are impacted by some of these decisions that, that
we're responsible for, for coming to some kind of conclusion. And I think that's
why I think the testifier here this morning, Mr. Ragon, is raising some of that as a,
as an owner who is impacted. But in part it ties back to us in terms of how we
process these applications and how we are completing them or not. Okay. And
so, I think this is a necessary and a very valuable part if we're going to look at
why we have these processes, why we have these applications and what is the,
the, the intent and the reason and the purpose for these, and ensure that as we're
going through them. . .some of the intent in terms of SMA is to make sure that our
environmental quality is given due consideration when we're looking at
application processes. So I, I think those are reasons why we should take a close
look at to...applicable fee amounts. Okay. And then I'm also seeing many
examples of abuses of the SMA planning process, and I want to at least add that I
think as Chairman of the Planning Committee, that I'm going to take an
opportunity to review these processes so that we can come to some better policy
decisions about what that is. But while we're here today we're looking at some of
the fee structures, and that's why I would raise them now,
but. . .(inaudible). . . some information about what I would like to do following
the, the budget process. Okay.
Next, if you take a look and I want to draw the attention to your Zoning and
Administration and Enforcement list. So on the attachments the Department's
provided, it's the third, let's see. . .one, two, three. . .two, three. . .I think the
fourth page. It's the one that's yellow, you got some highlighted. And here I
want to. . .try to extract what I think this information says. So if we look at the
SMA process then, zoning complaint forms, you have here listed in FY 2009,
you're saying that you had 571 complaint forms. And I believe that this would be
your actuals, Department?
MR. HUNT: I believe so. We, we can get our section head of the Zoning and
Administration Enforcement Division down here if you want detailed answers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, I'm assuming that since you're
providing this information and you're reflecting back in those two other fiscal
years of which are already pau, that these represent your actuals then? Okay.
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Then if we jump down to the, the third line and you say Notice of Violations,
okay, so what I'm trying to extract is that we have 571 complaints that are filed,
and then in terms of Notice of Violations we have administered 12. Is, is that
correct?
MR. HUNT: In Fiscal Year '09.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: 2009, correct. Okay. Now I'm, I'm
trying to make sense. We have all of these complaints here that we're supposed
to be processing and it's staff time and it's time and money on, on the
Department's part. But the result of those many complaints yield only 12.
MR. HUNT: Well, a number of the complaints can be addressed prior to going all the
way to a Notice of Violation. So the zoning inspectors work with the property
owner or whosever involved with the situation, and then try and get a solution
prior to actually issuing a Notice of Violation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So then there's nowhere on here
that you indicate then that the difference between 571 and 12 have been resolved?
MR. HUNT: That, that's correct. It's not listed.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So are you saying then that it is resolved?
MR. HUNT: I wouldn't, I would. . .assume that some of them had been resolved and
some of them are still working on being resolved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Now, again, I'm raising these
questions because I'm looking at workload, I'm looking at time. And if we have
this kind of complaint numbers being generated and we're only resolving 12 that
you've indicated here, it just says to me that we're looking at a 2 percent, you
know, in terms of completion. So.. .
MR. HUNT: Well, again it's not. . .the 12 isn't a resolution. The 12 is there wasn't a
resolution and we had to continue with the enforcement to the extent where we
had to actually issue a Notice of Violation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, exactly. And, and that's what I'm,
I'm saying is exactly what you're, you're indicating. So, I'm trying, trying to pull
it all together. So if we go back to the, the application process then and, you
know, I, I pulled a copy of your, your application, you know, and in looking at an
application for an SMA, on the first cover page, you know, you have listed here
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that the Department shall make determination and notify the applicant that the
proposed action is one, exempt; two, requires a minor, SMA Minor; three,
requires an SMA Major; and then four, requires an SMA Emergency Permit; or
five, cannot be processed. So those are the, the real outcomes of the application.
But if I look at the first one where under development it says, a development does
not include the following, and may be exempt from the SMA rules, provided that
the use, activity, or operation does not have a cumulative impact or significant
environmental or ecological effect on the SMA. So if an exemption then is the
determination of the Department, then you have some fees that are, that are
attached to the application. And in this case if I go to the second page of your
application, it says that, on the bottom. . .that non-refundable filing fees, you have
the total valuation and proposed action from 0 to 10,000--I'm not sure. Do you
have a copy of, do you have this? And if you look on the fee schedule on Page
20. . .25, at the very top, it's listed as a Table B for fee schedule for no public
hearing required. And in this section here is what is reflected on the application
form so that when I look at this, if I fit into the exempt category, then basically I
will be paying this fee amount. And in your, the rate and fee it says, $125,000
and one penny and up is only $165 in fee for the application. So, I'm just
wondering here and, again, I'm looking at. . .because we had the discussion
yesterday with the Finance Director, when we are in an exempt or determined to
be exempted here, one of the conditions that determine to be exempt is that under
No. 11 on your first page of the application, it says that a subdivision of land into
lots greater than 20 acres in size are exempt from the SMA. And then the second
one says, a subdivision of a parcel of land into four or fewer parcels when no
associated construction activity are proposed; provided that any future
subdivision. . .that the resulting parcels thereafter shall not qualify for this
exemption. So if I'm under these two categories, I'm considered exempt and then
I only pay 165, $165 for the, the fee?
MR. HUNT: For the SMA exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. So then what I wanted to, to clarify
is that the exemption fee now for this particular situation. . .only involves that
value up to 125 or. . .how does, yeah.. .
MR. HUNT: The, the exemption applies to certain developments, unless they result in a
cumulative or significant impact to the environment.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So in a case of the subdivision
then, what is the, the trigger that, that, that would require them now to move from
an exemption? They're, they're just totally exempt then if they're under this
condition?
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MR. HUNT: The first one would likely be the number of lots. So, for example, there's
an exemption for four or fewer lots. If you were proposing five lots, then it would
not be exempt.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But if they're under the four, four
or less, then they are exempt and then they...
MR. HUNT: Unless there's, unless they have a cumulative or, or significant
environmental impact.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. What I'm trying to establish here
is, is valuation. Is there a way to look at this so that the subdivision property,
while they're exempt and they only pay $165, what occurs is that in the
subdivision those properties--and again these are oceanfront properties more than
likely, and that's why they would be considered under this SMA. Well, when the
subdivided properties now are selling for millions of dollars, essentially we've
allowed a subdivision as a process to go through and to only cost $165, and yet a
single parcel of that, one of the four, if each of them sold an oceanfront property
for--let's just throw a number out--it's more than likely it's not going to be
$250,000, right? So let's talk millions now. We're talking properties on
oceanfront that are subdivided and we had charged $165 for the subdivision
process, but we place no other requirement on it, except it's a process for
subdividing. And yet the result of that is that you've got four new properties on
oceanfront that are exempt from SMA, and then now each one has the potential to
sell for let's say 5 to $10 million apiece. Now in terms of our workload, the
Department's workload and the processing of these things, I. . .this is an area that
I raise an issue right now about whether or not we need to take a closer look at
this fee structure because we place no requirement on the subdivider to tell us
what is the true value of the subdivision. And if we did, we surely would want to
say if we're going to allow you to subdivide oceanfront property and turnaround
and be able to, to sell that at exorbitant amounts of money, then this County
should be responsible in making sure that it's an appropriate fee. Yeah. And so I
wanna look at whether or not we're just considering...subdivision as a process or
we're looking at subdivision as a total project valuation, so that there's two
different ways of viewing it. If it's just a matter of paperwork and that you're
exempt, $165. Okay. But if it's a question of subdivision and what is the total
project evaluation, valuation here, then surely $165 shouldn't be the appropriate
fee for us to allow a subdivision to be sold at millions and millions of dollars for
just a slight fee of 165, you know. So, I raise that so I, I would like us to consider
looking at this more closely. And then.. .
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MR. HUNT: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MR. HUNT: When it's appropriate, I'd like to respond to that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, and then. . .you know, I, I
think we come back to the condition of the people who are involved in these
areas, you know, now they are impacted, and what is the process for review? And
that's the thing, the subject matter I think that the Committee can take up, you
know, how do we provide for that kind of, of review. So, so that. . .so what I
wanted to do then, Chair, is. . .you know, maybe ask the Department how, and,
and your response I think, how would you propose then for us to take a look, look
at this current fee structure within the Department, and at the same time try to
make sense with all of the stats that you've provided us in terms of what the
workload is, who's doing what, and at what cost? And then find an appropriate
structure within the budget to give you the kind of support that the Department
needs, because surely we wouldn't want you to be cut in terms of your staffing
and then have a result as you've indicated in your own communication to us that
the quality and the thoroughness of review would be diminished, and in some
cases the. . .even the follow-up would probably never occur. So, so how do we
find a way now to accommodate and make whole the kinds of goals that you have
in the Planning Department with these processes and then look at a fee structure
that would make that more fair and would be helpful to the Department, helpful to
this County, helpful to the people so that everyone gets a real clear view of the
process and what it costs? So your thoughts?
MR. HUNT: We've actually been discussing fees with our Department staff and with
our legal counsel, and it's important that when we establish a fee, that fee is set on
the amount of time or work involved with the application and, therefore, similar
applications or applications that involve the same amount of work would, should
have the same fee. So the process of issuing an exemption is somewhat
quick--that's the way the law's been set up--regardless of whether it's a simple
interior remodel or a subdivision along the coastline. If the County wants to
somehow generate revenues from those subdivisions along the coastline--after
talking to our legal counsel I believe the appropriate mechanism would be a
taxation or some other impact fee, not a fee in terms of processing, because
actually the amount of time is fairly similar between a very, very simple interior
remodel and a subdivision on the shoreline for the staff to, to issue the exemption.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So only because we're in, we're
in budget deliberations and one of the things that I think is something that we
need to take a look at is, is what are our current fees. And just in looking at this,
it just strikes me that based on all of what you've provided us with, that you
surely need that kind of support. So these processes, these are all applications,
you know. So what does it cost you, you know? That's why I'm asking can you
add those other columns to help us understand the true impact of what it is you've
given us information about all of your sections and divisions within your
Department, and then let's run them by what the fee structure is. And if there's
room in the fee structure, then I would like to propose that this budget cycle we
start to make some amendments to the fee structure so that we can make whole
your Department's ability to complete and, and do all the work that you've
described here that you currently do.
MR. HUNT: Our initial analysis indicates that we're only recovering 10 percent of our
staff time, the cost of our staff time. So, for example, loosely speaking, our
budget's around 5 million and we're generating 500,000 in fees. So that's only
10 percent. Our study, and we've studied this recently, shows that most
jurisdictions don't approach 100 percent. Some do, but it gets to be politically
unpalatable. So in the 50 to 60, maybe 70 percent range is a little more palatable.
Jumping from 10 to 60 to 70 in one jump, there's issues you should think about
there also. But we have information and, and we're more than happy to provide
that to you and work with you on the fees.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. You're, you're suggesting then that
we, we not look at this fee structure at this time and that you look at some other
mechanism of, of taxing that would be more appropriate in a, in a Code change
or. . .?
MR. HUNT: No. There's, there's two issues that I'm trying to respond to. One is the
idea that a, an exemption along a shoreline that results or affects four large lots
somehow should have a different fee than an exemption from an interior remodel,
and, and I have concerns with that. I think if you really want to affect the
subdivision on the shoreline, there's other tools. Now the separate issue is of the
amount of time that staff is involved to process these applications, that's where
I'm saying our estimates is we're only recovering 10 percent of our staff fees--but
that would be for all of 'em, not just SMA exemptions, all, all applications.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. My only thought is after
yesterday's discussion with the Budget Director about how we might make some
of these adjustments and, and proposals for fee changes, I just wanted to look at
this particular one in terms of exemptions if it right now costs only $165 for, for
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any application that's considered exempt. If there was an evaluation on this
application--let's say the, the project was between $1 and let's say $1 million, that
there would be a fee for that; $1 million to $21/2 million, it would be another fee;
21/2 to $51/2 million there would be another fee; 51/2 million or more, that there
would be another fee, like, like you have here and up, $165. Right now all of
those categories in the exemption all pay just $165.
MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that's why I'm trying to look at what
is appropriate now for us to consider in fee structures so that we're not saying that
from $1 to infinity for this kind of application only costs you $165.
MR. HUNT: And, and again my response is I believe our fee for an exemption is only a
percentage of our actual staff time. But I'm hesitant to say you can have a sliding
scale fee for exemptions based on the value of the project, because a more
expensive project doesn't necessarily require more staff time to issue an
exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I know, but what I'm saying is that we,
as a County, we're providing. . . (end of tape 1B —10:10 a.m.). . .as well and in the
processing, yes, you may now take more time for you to do a process of a, of a
$200,000 project versus a $250 million project, but nonetheless there are
different...valuations to those projects. So appropriately it would seem that the
impacts are going to still be there for your community, in a subdivision and in that
kind of a process, that, that the fee should be commensurate with what the
valuation of that project is, is what I'm saying, not that it's going to take you the
same amount of time. So what are your thoughts about that?
MR. HUNT: I think we're getting into a lot of detail that perhaps we can sit down in a
conference room and, and, and work out some of these issues rather than here in
the Council Chambers. But-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. And, again, I want to direct it to the
fee structure because I, I think this is where I'm trying to focus where some of the
changes and this is what we're dealing with right now. And I would happily have
a discussion on how to, how to come about with something that's appropriate-MR. HUNT: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --so that we can make some of this
decisions in this next couple weeks about fee structure. But it is what you've
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provided us with information that helps me now to try and raise some of these
questions about what does it really, truly cost your Department to, to do a
topnotch job, and then what should be our responsibility as a County to apply
appropriate fees to these processes?
MR. HUNT: And I think we're on the same page that we both agree that the fees need
review, and now we need to get down to the details and how do we change those
fees.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Chair, that was my main
reason for calling the Planning Department back, and I'm glad that the
Department's open and I would like to help to resolve and find a way to present to
this Committee in a way of restructuring the fees within this one section. And I
was very happy yesterday that the Finance Department was willing also to do
some restructuring in this area. I'm not looking at trying to just make money, you
know, I'm looking to at least enhance some of the revenue side. But I think in
this particular case from the Planning Department, it's real clear that we're not,
we're not applying this kind of fee structure in an appropriate manner, and that's
why I raise it today. So. . .so, I will yield the floor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Kaho'ohalahala. We surely don't want to
have the County lose money, you know, and, and your questioning is appropriate.
Of course, you know, what the Department had said is that we really don't get
compensated for the work that we do in the Planning Department and, and we
should make it such that if we need to go to a different structure, that the Planning
Department and probably the Planning Committee is really appropriate, and, and
the Finance area is the most appropriate to come up with a fee structure similar,
similarly like we're trying to do with the Traffic Impact Study as well. My, the
question I want to ask you, you know, what is a Development Impact Fee, what is
that?
MR. HUNT: A Development Impact Fee would be a fee that's based on the--well, not to
be redundant, but the impacts that are generated from the development. So you
could have a traffic impact fee, a water, parks, wastewater, roads.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So all of those are included in a Development Impact Fee?
MR. HUNT: Generally speaking.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So I, I bring the case like Member Kaho'ohalahala had brought
up, one big parcel subdivided into four evenly-sized parcels. Would you consider
that like a development?
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MR. HUNT: It would be a development, but the impacts from that would, would--again,
you'd have to look at what are the actual impacts. From four or five homes the
traffic wouldn't be nearly as large as a commercial development, for example. So
the impact fee on a subdivision, even though it's along the coastline, in terms of
traffic would be a lot less than a commercial development.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So right now the $165 is applied to that?
MR. HUNT: No, the $165 fee is to cover staff time, Planning Department-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Only-MR. HUNT: --staff time. You know, there's the saying, there's no free lunch.
Somebody has to pay for the staff to process that permit and right now, there's a
10 percent portion of that staff time being supported by the fees and 90 percent
from the General Fund. In essence, the taxpayers are subsidizing each
development application-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we should change that?
MR. HUNT: --90 percent. It's, it's certainly worthy of examination.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Johnson and then followed by
Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and this is like déjà vu, Mr. Chair,
because if you recall years ago I think before with the previous Planning Director,
we actually had changed to a sliding scale in some of the fee structures. At one
point we had had that whole discussion. Because what ended up happening is it
was in there and then in a subsequent year it all got made. . .you know, everything
reverted back because I guess, you know, of the very reasons that you're citing.
So, I know that at one time we had proposed and we did have based on the, I
guess, whether it was in your Department or even Public Works for review
because in our estimation a more complex development that has other potential
impacts because of its footprint, and particularly in the coastal zone area, certainly
should have a more thorough review than something that's simply an interior
change that will not have any impact. 'Cause you're looking at sewage systems,
you're looking at outflow, how many plumbing fixtures are in there--all these
things. So that's why initially we had, and I believe, Mr. Chair, if you look back
historically, you'll find in the fees--whether it's in Planning review or it's in the
Public Works--you'll find that we did have a sliding scale based on the, I guess,
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the enormity of whatever the development was, that there was a rational nexus.
So, I don't know why in the devil, you know, it went back, but I remember that
there was some issue with regard to there had been a study done to justify that,
and I believe it was under Mr. Foley that somehow we reverted back, you know,
to this single, you know, little narrow amount of money being collected. And
that's unfortunate, unfortunate, you know, how we've lost, you know, that
particular, I guess, you know, ability to garner income based on--you know, I
mean to me I, I'm not working in your Department, I have no clue, but all I can
say is that I've got, if I've got 47 pages to go through as opposed to two, that is
going to take me a little bit more time, and the parameters that you would be
reviewing would certainly be greater. So, I totally understand why
Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala is going in that direction 'cause it's kind of from
us, you know--and I think it was when he was off the Council before--you know,
it's kind of we've been there, we've done that, and I know, Mr. Chair, you were,
were here also when we had that.
I guess my other, my other question, though, apart from, you know, the discussion
we're having right now is that from the perspective of the, I guess, in your last
response that was handed out by Member Kaho'ohalahala, it's in regard to the
Traffic Impact Fee Study. You know, now how long has this been going on?
This is a revenue source that we should. . .we should be getting the buckolas [sic],
you know, to make a long story short. What is the status on that right now? Are,
are we like not ready to come forward with the traffic impact fees or what is the
potential for collection? 'Cause I, much like Member Kaho'ohalahala as well as
the rest of us, we're looking at what can we collect based on the conditions that
were also applied in subdivision agreements, in SMA applications, and what can
we realistically, if we're going to go forward with that fee and the implementation
of it, what's the timeline we're looking at it? Can we get any money in the
coffers this fiscal year so that we would have that as revenue to help operate both
your Department and, you know, I guess satisfy the conditions? So, I'm looking.
MR. HUNT: I can give a brief answer and then if we need more, we'll ask Mr. Summers
to come down.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HUNT: The last time when we brought that Traffic Impact Fee Study to the
Council, there was concern that it didn't include transit, there was also concerns
about regionalism and the fees being applied for different regions. So the
instruction was to take out another contract and have a consultant address those
concerns, and that's what the Department is doing now. We are working on that,
that update--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. HUNT: --or expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and, you know, and, and if you recall,
because that was in Ms. Baisa's Committee, that was not the Council, that was the
very person who had been contracted to do the study that mucked up the whole
thing by pulling a 180 on all of us. So, you know, the millions of dollars that
have gone down the toilet in the meantime, I, I really got aggravated by that, and
it's not you, it wasn't us, it certainly was something that yes, if that issue had
been raised at the beginning when the consultant began doing the study, I
would've certainly felt a lot better about it. And I hope that that is not the same
consultant that you hired to do this most recent study, because I. . .I hope you
never hire that firm again.
MR. HUNT: It's not the same consultant.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank God.
MR. HUNT: I didn't mean to point the finger at anybody, I was just reminding
everybody of the last steps, and we actually support the inclusion of transit. So.. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I know we had asked about that, but
the whole other issue was one which is why it ended up having to go back
because of the regionalization. But do we have any timeline?
MR. HUNT: I'm going to ask Mr. Summers to come down.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is, is that all right, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Mr. Summers?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And while Mr. Summers is coming down, just a fast question
for the Director. On the next page there are certain fees included, like
appeals. . .mostly appeals. Have you guys ever taken a look at how much it cost
the County to hear an appeal and, and if the cost again, you know, is. . .that we
show on Page 26 cover your cost in reviewing appeals?
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MR. HUNT: I believe appeals were part of our recent fee study, and like all the other
activities--I shouldn't say absolutely all of 'em--but I think it's fair to say,
generally speaking, the fees that we charge the public do not cover the staff time
involved in processing and dealing with the applications.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
So maybe at the same time while you review
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala's request, that you also take a look on Page 26 on the fees,
rates and fees.
MR. HUNT: We will do that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Summers? Member Johnson, question for
Mr. Summers?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and mainly I just want to find out what is
the timing we're looking at, because you know what we're faced with, you know,
and even threatened cuts to your departments. And so I'm looking at how can we
get money, what's the realistic expectation as to getting revenues from this study
and, of course, if it's all predicated upon when the study is completed and when
we're going to get the report, do we have any idea when that might be?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Summers?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The short answer to that, if
we really, you know, push the pedal to the, to the ground on that, it's possibly
early next year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, God.
MR. SUMMERS: Now in addition to that, we have an ordinance that we'll be working
on. So it would be a two-step process. We, we would present an ordinance to the
Council first, that could perhaps be done later this year, and then that would be
followed up with the actual study that our consultant, an excellent, nationally
recognized consultant would provide us.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Now let me ask you the $64,000 question,
`cause I've asked this many, many times. Would the Administration or is it
possible because I've seen this done in other jurisdictions where between the
time--because this is like. . .I don't know, what, 20 years old that that requirement
has been on the books to, you know, to basically conduct a Traffic Impact Fee
Study and, you know, put the fees in place. We've already had, I think this will
now be the third study that we've had done since I've been here, because we had
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one done--yeah, I think this is the third study because there was one under Apana,
there was the one that was used, I think, when that was presented to
Member Baisa's Committee, and now this next one. So my thought is with the
information, the limited stuff that we have, is there any way that in the interim we
can actually adopt a transitional fee that until, you know, let's say like an interim
fee that would be able to be collected right now from the people that have that
requirement attached to their, the applications? Because for me--and this may
have to go to Corporation Counsel, Mr. Chair--but I don't see why not if we have
some of the preliminary information and we can collect a baseline fee, and then if
the study shows that additional monies are owed, that this would be an interim
amount that we would be collecting. If there's any adjustments, they would either
get a refund or have to pay additional monies. It's still not in full satisfaction
`cause the, the, you know, the study has not been fully completed. But I certainly
want to see if there isn't someway that we could collect monies due because, you
know, it's just, it's not happening and this is way too frustrating given the
County's fiscal situation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I. . .question for you. Looking back when I was
on the Planning Commission, we had imposed a number which developers
voluntary, volunteered to pay, you know, when their subdivisions were completed
in regards to the Traffic Impact Fee. And at the time, it was either you pay this
much or whatever it, whatever is. . .approved by the Council at a future date,
whichever, and, and we had set a timeline. And I, I don't know if the Department
has kept track in regards to all of those conditions that were imposed on
developers and if we ever had collected any of those fees that was volunteered by
the so-called developers at that time. Mr. Summers?
MR. HUNT: I believe you're talking about the Conditional Zoning applications that have
come through?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Conditional Zonings and even for entitlements, I think,
yeah.
MR. HUNT: Off the top of my head, I can't say that we have, but I, I don't want to state
that absolutely. I prefer to go and discuss it with Public Works perhaps-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: --and some of the other Planning staff and, and come back to you with a
response.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, you know, I was on the Planning Commission back in
1998 and maybe you can go, you know, as far back as maybe '95. I don't know if
the planning commissioners at the time imposed such a condition whenever they
came for entitlements. So.. .
MR. HUNT: Some of the fees are likely not triggered yet and there, there's a condition
that says at a certain point in the development then the fees have to be paid. And
given the economy and the slowdown and the pause button that a number of
projects have hit, I would assume a lot of 'em are just waiting for that condition to
get triggered.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I kind of remembered some of the subdivisions up in
Kihei built by Spencer, I think, at that time.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and the only reason I'm raising these
issues now is because, Mr. Chair, we're looking to balance our budget, we're
looking for revenues. And I look at collectibles, you know, I look at okay, how
much money is really owed the County between the deferral agreements, which
we haven't kept track of; between SMA conditions, which also now many times
are being borne by the taxpayers. We're getting a double whammy. You know,
not only are these guys not doing the SMA things that they should've been doing
and, you know, I had a handout here--I don't know who gave it to us--but anyway
on Olowalu Mauka. You know, so all of these things are impacts, Mr. Chair, that
impact the dollars that we're not collecting for things that are requirements that
are be, to be done by the people who, who have these conditions attached. And
yet, now we're doing them, we're expending taxpayer money, and now we're in a
situation where we may have to ask taxpayers, you know, to at least pay level
with what they were paying before. I don't want to have any huge increases. But
I feel really awful and I feel it's not fair to the taxpayers when we haven't gone
out and we haven't pounded the bushes for the money that we're already owed.
That is the problem for me. How can we in good conscience ask people to pay
when we haven't done our due diligence in collecting what's already owed? This
is money that's not owed to me, Mr. Chair. This is money that's owed to the
taxpayers. So, I have a problem with that. So, I want to find any way that we
possibly can to get the money into the coffers as soon as possible to help balance
our budget. So that's, that's what I'm looking at and I agree with
Member Kaho'ohalahala. You've been there. . .(chuckle). . .1 mean how many
times have you been Budget Chair and we've had this conversation? It's like
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Ground Hog Day, the movie, you know, everyday it's the same thing, same thing,
and nothing is happening. So I, I'm sorry to go on and off topic but, you know,
this is really important to all of us and I. . .it just hurts me to just ask people for
money when I haven't done the best that I can to go and collect what's already
owed to the people.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala, followed by
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Yesterday in
our discussions about the appeal process and how we're going to do some
consideration of that, we also talked about the flipside of that, and that was
penalties and interest. So, I wanted to ask the Department, we have. . .we're
going to be talking about some of the appeals and the fees and. . .for that, that we
can discuss. But can we talk about the penalty side of it because I want to know
that when there is a violation, that you have the ability to apply a penalty. And
then along with that you also have the ability to attach interest on, on those
penalties. Is, is that correct?
MR. HUNT: We, we have an ability to assess a fine once a, a Notice of Violation has
been issued and, again, we try and work out a solution prior to that. But if it
comes down to that, we have. . .the rules that are adopted allow us to assess an
initial fine and then a daily fine.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So your rules give you that, that
authority?
MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then currently what, what are those?
MR. HUNT: It depends on which type of violation it is, but generally speaking, if it's not
in the SMA, it's $1,000 initial and then $1,000 a day. But there's a. . .almost a
fee schedule, if you will, on fines depending on the different types of uses. In the
SMA, I believe it's $10,000 an initial.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So if you're in an SMA violation, then
initially you could be fined $10,000?
MR. HUNT: I believe so.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then does that go for a one time
only?
MR. HUNT: That's the initial fine-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: --and then there's a daily fine that accrues every day that the violation
remains unresolved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And what would be the accrual?
MR. HUNT: Excuse me?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: What would be the accrual for days
beyond the initial fine?
MR. HUNT: It, it goes until it's resolved. Some of these have accrued up to millions of
dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's at $10,000 per day as well? No?
What-MR. HUNT: No-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --what is-MR. HUNT: --10,000 initial and $1,000 a day.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, and $1,000 per day until that
violation has been resolved?
MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we're talking lots of money
here potentially if someone was in violation and did not resolve an issue?
MR. HUNT: Potentially.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 22, 2010

MR. HUNT: I believe last year we collected the $36,000 in fines. The year before it was
higher than that, we had a couple larger fines. And this year we're projecting
$200,000 in fines.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I want to ask the question about
what just came to us from communications from your Department concerning a
violation of an SMA for non-conformity, and this is the, the gentleman that came
to testify here earlier this morning talked about the. . .the. . .what is the Olowalu
Mauka, and you have a letter dated February 25 th that says--and this is being
addressed to Mr. Martin--and it says based on the evidence collected on
February 2, 2010, we find that non-compliance with SMA conditions listed under
your SMA application is in violation. And it says further that you list a whole
bunch of conditions and you attached also the original conditions to that
application for SMA, and it says here that the Conditions 2, 4, 8, 11, 12, 14, 19,
32, 33 are these violations out of 32 conditions. Okay. And then you said here
that, that please comply with all of the SMA conditions by March 27, 2010. So, I
just wanted to, to note that this application is ten years old. So in terms of fees,
fines, how does that all work when someone has now been noted to be in
violations of many of these conditions for an SMA application and you have the
ability to apply these fines of 10,000 initial and $1,000 per day until it is
completed and it's 10 years old? So when we're talking about revenues and
monies that are collected, are due to the County for these kinds of conditions, then
how, how do we collect on these things and what's the process to do the
collection? And are, are these--well, like you said, they're all Administrative
Rules, so you have the, the authority to apply these amounts. So how will you
address this particular one that's a ten year old with multiple, multiple violations
for an application in terms of fees and fines?
MR. HUNT: The fines don't start until a Notice of Violation is issued. And depending
on whether it's in the SMA or not, we have to give warnings first and give them
appropriate time to resolve the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So.. .
MR. HUNT: In this particular case the person who that letter was sent to has responded
and provided their side of the story, their facts, and we are researching and
analyzing their response, and we will then take it to the next step. If we believe
that they are still in violation, then we will pursue enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So in, in other words then only since this
has been brought to the attention recently, then nothing is applicable to the
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ten-year stretch of time for which none of these conditions were, were fulfilled in
terms of an approval for this particular development project?
MR. HUNT: That's correct. The fines start when we issue a Notice of Violation. We
have limits on, on our ability and we should, government should be limited and
the ability to fine somebody should have limits and those limits are--we don't fine
somebody until we actually issue a Notice of Violation, and we don't issue that
notice until we have evidence gathered that leads to a conclusion that they are in
violation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And that's why, Chair, I want to
move to the other side of this is on the proactive side, is that when we're doing
these processes, it should be something that we know upfront because then at the
end of it, on the back end of it, like you said in your own letter and
communication to us, that in some cases the follow-up within your Department is
not even there, you know, and then to lose staffing and to lose funding makes it
even more of a problem.
MR. HUNT: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So here again is a perfect example, ten
years of violations and we applied no, no fines until we take it up now. So is this
one of those instances then where on the backside we don't have follow-up, you
know?
MR. HUNT: I think it's an example of where we need staff to do the follow-up. And in
the past, like I indicated in the memo, the Department was so overwhelmed with
just processing applications, that we didn't have time to do the follow-up.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But in, in this case what, what we're
talking about is fines and, and, and penalties that are really collectable. So we
should spend as much time to make sure that there are none of these violations
because if you just multiplied out $10,000 for an initial fine times 10 years at
$1,000 each day, that might take care of our entire County Budget.
MR. HUNT: That's assuming we can collect that fine and, again, we'd have to have,
we'd have to have-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Again-MR. HUNT: --solid evidence.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the point is that these are as important
to us in the County in terms of where, where we look and how we apply these
kinds of fines and fees so that they can be supportive of the County and its work.
And right now, these are monies that are, aren't even within our coffers and the
potential for that has been now ten years and standing. So.. .
MR. HUNT: I, I think it's important to recognize what the fine is intended to do, and
that's. . .it's intended to deter non-compliance or it's intended to bring people into
compliance I don't think we really want to look at fines as a revenue generator.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I understand that-MR. HUNT: But the Department, the Department's really-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --(inaudible due to interruption) just this
kind of situation, then I need to ask upfront then what is our processes to ensure
that these don't occur, you know?
MR. HUNT: And we-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. HUNT: --we have taken steps to increase the number or the dollar fine that we can
assess to somebody, and we also, as a policy, are not settling our fines. Previous
Administrations would assess a huge fine and then fine them $1 or something like
that. We're, we're no longer doing that, but there's still equity and fairness and
evidence gathering and, and issues like that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, I hope we can have that same
discussion in, in everything else in terms of coming together with some kind of
fee and fine structure or whatever is appropriate so to achieve that.
MR. HUNT: Well, again the, the fines-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. HUNT: --are set by rules.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right. And I realize that. So. . .thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I just want to add a few
things. First of all, I want to say amen to collecting the Traffic Impact Fees. I
remember when I joined the Council in 2006 as Planning Chair and I saw that
item that was like 24 years old, I went crazy and pulled it out and was hoping that
I could do a miracle and then found out I couldn't. So here we are, it's 2010, and
we still don't have it and we're going to wait another year. . . . (sigh). . . I, I just
don't know what to say about that. It appears to me from what we've heard this
morning and what we've been hearing over the course of reviewing the budget, is
this is just another area where we have issues with fees and rates and how we
charge things. This is not just in the Planning Department, you know, it's
everywhere, what we charge, how we charge, how much we can charge even
though we know what it cost. There's always the problem of how much the
market will bear, and so we have to be a little careful. But, you know, I was
thinking as I was listening to the conversation with the Planning Department
about, you know, compensating the staff for the hours they spend. We're almost
becoming, needing to become like a law firm. You know, I've had the very
rare. . . (end of tape 2A — 10:41 a.m.)...bill. You want to faint because they bill
you for every phone call, every Xerox copy, every whatever, but you do pay, and
it may be that we're getting to that point where we have to do a better job of
tracking our costs and documenting them and then billing people based on cost
rather than we're going to charge you $15 to do this and it winds up costing us
$1,000. So, you know, we may have to look at a different kind of way of setting
fees, maybe a per hour rate or something and then, you know, ancillary costs or
related costs get charged based on actual cost. So, you know, what I'm seeing
here today is, Chair, I think that maybe it would behoove us to put in our budget,
and I know this has probably been done before 'cause you always have a bright
idea and everything new is old, but maybe we need a more comprehensive study
of fees and rates and looking at new ways to bring money into the County
because, you know, we're stuck here with the dwindling revenues. And if we're
not going to put it all in property tax, we have to start looking at revenue streams,
and if we get paid for the work we do and, you know, it's documented, then it's
fair. So, I think that that may be one of the bottom lines here is in a proposal
somebody suggest that we spend some money to get a real good fee study or what
things really cost and then we look at alternatives to what we're doing now,
`cause obviously it's not correct. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and I think the Planning Department had
already started a fee study--correct me if I'm wrong--and I think he presented to
the Council one time at least.
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MR. HUNT: That's correct. We do have a fee study just for the Planning Department.
Again, there's. . .the devil's in the details. I mean, Kathleen, you have it in front
of you? Some of the fees are. . .would be if you actually covered all staff time,
would be in the tens of thousands of dollars.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. AOKI: This is just a preliminary finding, so it's not quite completed, but I can give
you folks an example of what the consultant came up with. For an appeal, the
question, you know, they pay $550 or 165, depending on the type of appeal. The
actual costs on the Department is $9,104. So it becomes a question of are you
actually going to increase that fee to $9,000 from 165? I was looking at SMA
subdivisions and I don't have it all in front of me, but you're right, in the fee
schedule it shows 165. But if it became bumped up to a major, the fee for that
would be 2,475 based on the current fee schedule, and the actual cost--I've lost
my place--would be $8,353 and that's in the SMA. So there's. . .this, this was an
eye-opener for us, I mean extreme eye-opener for us, but then again you're gonna,
are you gonna charge the little MaryJo Souza who comes in and wants to do
something, you know, $10,140 to do a Community Plan Amendment? Are you
going to charge that amount for a hotel that wants to do a Community Plan
Amendment? Because this fee structure is based solely on the time it takes to
process the permit. It's not based on valuation. And the consultant provided a
number of reasons on why they felt that this was the best way to do it and how it's
done in other planning departments across the country. So there's more of a
nexus of the actual fee versus a fine and what it is that you're paying for. You're
paying for that planner's staff time to process this permit, take it through Council,
take it through Planning Commission, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You may have noticed in my comment that I said that
what the market would bear-MS. AOKI: Right. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --would also have to be a factor because if it costs
$10,000 and nobody can afford to pay, pay that, then, you know, what are we
going to do? Another thing we may have to establish in this County and I know
we sort of have one, but I think it needs to be emphasized, is a collections
department. It appears that we've got money all over the place that we need to
really seriously go after and spend the money to get it, 'cause we don't have a
choice. We either going to have to do that or we're going to have to keep raising
taxes, and nobody wants to do that when other monies are available. So, you
know, that discussion we had yesterday with Mr. Young about, you know, giving
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them the staff to do, go out and collect our money, I think it's something we got
to do. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and we started from last Budget cycle and
they presented us with their plan, and we're gonna go after the monies that is
owed to the County. So the return is great. So, Members, any more questions for
the Planning Department? If not, Mr. Hunt, Mr. Summers, Ms. Aoki, thank you
for being here this morning and we expect good things from you guys in regards
to fees, rates and fees. So if you could work with Member Kaho' ohalahala and
come out with some kind of numbers as we move forward. Okay. Members,
that's all we had for the Planning Department this morning.
Just a reminder, you know, each of us will need to make a proposal and. . .the
request is that by the end of the day tomorrow if we can have some numbers from
each of you, that would be good. I don't know if they got the spreadsheet. You
do? And then tomorrow, we will have the Fire Department tomorrow morning.
They'll be here after we take up with the Finance Department in regards to some
of their proposed bill, bills. And then the Police will not be available until
1:30 p.m. So we may have a full day tomorrow. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, Chair, to be perfectly clear, the proposal to you is due
by tomorrow afternoon, like 4:30?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, 4:30.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. That gives us a little bit
leeway. We were hoping today would be free and tomorrow-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Me, too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --but that's not happening. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But we had some Members request departments to be here. So
at, at least we've got the rest of the day today to work on your proposal. And
some of the things that we'll be talking about in regards to with the Finance
Department, there are four proposed bills as well as resolutions.
The first one is a proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY TAX, DIRECTOR DUTIES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES, AND ADJUSTMENTS AND REFUNDS", and, again, in
the March 15 th submittal from the Mayor document. . .transmitted to Committee
by the Council Chair.
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The second one is a correspondence dated March 16, 2010, from the Department
of Corporation Counsel, transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled "A BILL
FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3.48.450, MAUI COUNTY
CODE, PERTAINING TO REAL PROPERTY TAX HOME EXEMPTION".
Number three, a correspondence dated April 14, 2010, from the Department of
Corporation Counsel, transmitting a revised proposed resolution entitled
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE TO, TO. . .COMPROMISE
THE PENALTIES AND INTEREST PORTION OF REAL PROPERTY TAXES
ASSESSED AGAINST HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS HOMESTEAD LESSEES
IN EXCHANGE FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS
MAKING PAYMENT OF REAL PROPERTY TAX OWED BY HAWAIIAN
HOME LANDS HOMESTEAD LESSEES.
And the last, last item tomorrow would be the correspondence dated
April 19, 2010, from the Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting a
revised proposed bill entitled A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
SECTION 3.48.305, MAUI COUNTY CODE, again, PERTAINING TO REAL
PROPERTY TAX LAND CLASSIFICATION.
So those are the four proposed bills as well as resolutions that's going to be taken
up tomorrow morning. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Just for the public's
information, so it'll just be strictly discussion because I just want to make sure
we're, we're, you know, I don't want to get into any Sunshine Law issues because
these haven't been agendized for the public then, right?
MS. REVELS: They were.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: They were?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay, I just want to make sure. So they're
going to discuss it, but no decision making on it tomorrow?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So it's just, just discussion? Okay. And then for the
record, who, who requested the departments to come in? Well, Finance, was that
from you, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Victorino.

Finance is from me.

Fire and Police is from

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. And, and just for the public's
information, what is going to be brought up with Police and Fire?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: In regards to their budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Their. . .is it salaries, I guess, or Operating
Budget?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, nothing like that. Reducing costs for both departments.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Reducing costs for both departments. Okay.
Okay, thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. As we move, you know, basically we're looking at
reducing costs. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. For, for you, Fred. We received that one
communication in regards to positions that you have frozen. And I know that this
Administration may be take...well has taken a different twist when they
substantiate filling vacant positions and calling it economic development. Okay.
That's what we had heard from Fred. Has that changed or is what we received as
far as what this Administration is saying, that is all the positions that you intend to
freeze for this fiscal year? Are we going to see any more in lieu of perhaps--the,
the Administration has changed towards the emergency air because of public
opposition, Mr. Chairman. So now they're saying they want to fund it. Public
opposition yesterday was to us that we've seen County government grow and yet
private industry has had to administer cuts. We've seen where in many hotels or
whatever, we've seen them saying that certain unions'. . .contracts were to where
these workers had to not take pay increases. I know we're a lot different and, and
maybe it's easy for us to justify raising fees, raising property taxes, the gamut
when we need money. It's an easy out for us, Mr. Chairman. And, and, and I
think that was what the message was, even from Tom Fairbanks on his birthday
today. You know, I, I could feel the, the emotion of his speech. I mean he's
really, I mean this, this man was really saying, you guys better do your, your part.
You know, and, and so, Fred, just as Administration has changed when, when all
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the testimonies and they came at all our public hearings about the air ambulance,
you know, from Molokai, to Kahului, to whatever, they were there--so they
changed--is there any change in this Administration in regards to now looking at
vacancies and saying that you want to cut more or, or freeze more or eliminate
more positions? I, I think this is real important. I'm willing to go ahead and deal
with it because I think many of us feel that we need to do our share also in lieu of
what we've heard from people. I mean this is, for me, an eye-opener, and I think
you've mentioned it, Mr. Chairman, and I think many other Members have
mentioned it also. Oh, boy, you know, I, I, I, I feel, you know, what I've never
felt before. So, Fred, are you coming down with any more recommendations on
how to show more revenue stream for us?
MR. PABLO: The revenue stream or.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, revenue stream means if we don't fund these
positions-MR. PABLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that, that you have in vacancies.. .
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .then that would be additional revenues, yes-MR. PABLO: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --or, or an ability to not have to raise certain fees or
taxes or whatever?
MR. PABLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I mean you know the tremendous pressure that we're
having to face.
MR. PABLO: I certainly do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But I've not--you, you want to fund now the emergency
thing so you, now you're, you want to spend money. Okay. Okay. I've never
heard anything, Mr. Chairman, from them on additional austerities. And, and the
biggest has to be warm bodies.
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MR. PABLO: Okay. I think if you--may I, may I comment, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Yeah, you can.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Budget Director.
MR. PABLO: Let me just make a general comment. When we came down before you
on March 22nd , we, we tried to explain what the picture was for the County. We
were facing a 53 million shortfall in revenue. We tried to take a balanced
approach. In my first day of presentation, I tried to explain that out of the whole
budget, most of the shortfall is in the General Fund. So this is where the focus
was. The major revenue source in the General Fund is real property tax. But we
didn't want to increase it too high. We tried to increase it to be revenue neutral.
We're only bringing it up to two-thirds of what it, what the loss was. The other
costs cutting are in, in the department operations and the amount of cash funded
CIPs. Talking of vacancies. . .when you look in the General Fund for the General
Fund employees, guess where the biggest amounts are? We have a workforce of
about 1,800 General Fund employees; 800 of those are in the Police and Fire.
That's where the focus would have to be. I met with the Chief Yabuta regarding
the Police and when he came down here, he mentioned that he was going to be
partially funding the vacant positions. The next, other than Police and Fire, the
next two biggest departments in the General Fund are Parks and Recreation and
Finance Parks and Recreation, when you look at the list of frozen vacancies of
79 employees, you'll find that quite a number of the Parks and Recreation
employees are being frozen. The next Department is Finance And if you look at
the Finance, much of the discussion was here to keep Finance pretty well staffed.
In fact, last year you had put in two additional positions for the Fiscal Officer,
which is badly needed, so we can get the CAFR on time and then some other
positions. The remaining departments in the General Fund have very few
vacancies, and we didn't want to decimate the smaller departments Like I say, I
would say out of that 1,800 employees, those four departments that I've
mentioned are the bulk of it. Reducing or freezing positions in the Special
Revenue Funds really do not help the General Fund much Like I say, the focus
this year was on the four big departments--Police, Fire, Parks, and Finance--and
this is the basis of it. Whether you want to freeze the Police positions, this, this
body could, could consider that. What I considered was working with the
departments--they have the best idea on what kind of staffing they need. The
Police has had a very difficult time in past years in hiring recruits. When the
economy is good, they can't get recruits; when the economy is down, such as is
now, they have been able to fill the recruit positions, and I see it that the County
does have a role in hiring the, the unemployed and this is an opportunity. But it's
in your Committee, whatever you decide you would like to do with these four
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departments, that will be it. But we, we have, I'd like to say, worked with the
departments to try to identify positions that'll be frozen which, which I gave you
on February 16 th .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that's it?
MR. PABLO: For now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's not only in Police and Fire, okay. If you look,
there's in Public Works, in Water-MR. PABLO: Public Works is the-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in, in, in all the different areas.
MR. PABLO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. PABLO: Public Works-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I'm just saying that-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Um.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --who's funded this? And I'm just asking you.
MR. PABLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You said no, fine.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
MR. PABLO: No. Public-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Pablo.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .(inaudible). . .
MR. PABLO: Public Works is a Highway Fund. And by freezing the position to hire
for, that doesn't really help the General Fund much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I understand that, yeah, the Water Department,
Environmental Management Department. One concern that I have, though, is that
the supplemental transfers that we do to some of the departments utilizing General
Fund is an issue. But my only concern and, and, you know, talking to the
different departments is that, you know, when you hear--and this is what, you
know, really upsets me--is that all of a sudden we have vacancies now being
filled, filled as early or as late as the first week in April, which is to me. . .like you
said the word, not right, but, you know, not thinking in regards to, you know,
what we face as far as budget shortfalls. And when you look at previous years,
they've been working okay for I don't know how many months or years without
those positions, and all of a sudden you see major hiring which really shouldn't
be. And hopefully, that. . .I, I don't know if all of the approvals has been gotten
in regards to those vacancies that are now being filled. Hopefully that, you know,
you guys can take a look at that if it wasn't approved yet. You know, we're faced
with a tough decision. And as Member Nishiki had noted and I've been alluding
to is that. . .we may come down to some unpleasant decisions in the next week
and a half. And, you know, like I told the Members that, you know, it's going to
be nine of us making this decision because one man just can't do it without the
support of, you know, eight other Members. So-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that's my comment for this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. If I, if I may. You know what, Fred, just
because-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, I'm just going to stop you right here. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And at this time, the Chair is going to adjourn this meeting.
And I thank you very much for being here this morning at the request of
Member Kaho'ohalahala with the Planning Department.
So the Budget and Finance Committee meeting of April 22 nd is now adjourned.
. . .(gavel). . .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
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